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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF LOUISIANA

SEVENTH SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT FOR |
VIOLATIONS OF THE FEDERAL GUN CONTROL ACT
AND THE FEDERAL CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES ACT

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA * CRIMINAL NO. 15-277
v. * SECTION: “L”
TERRANCE MORGAN * VIOLATIONS: 18 U.S.C. § 922(g)(1)
RICHARD GREEN 18 U.S.C. § 924(a)(2)
a/k/a “Blue” * 18 U.S.C. § 924(c)(1)(A)
a/k/a “Bam” 18 U.S.C. § 924(0)
KENDALL CELESTINE * 18 U.S.C. §2
ERIC ROBINSON 21 U.S.C. § 841(a)
MARVIN ARMSTRONG * 21 U.S.C. § 841(b)(1)(B)
PATRICK SCHEXNAYDER 21 U.S.C. § 841(b)(1)(C)
alk/a “Pat” * 21 U.S.C. § 846
a/k/a “Red”
% %k *

The Grand Jury charges that:
COUNT 1
Beginning on a date unknown, but before June 2014, and continuing until on or about July
11, 2018, in the Eastern District of Louisiana and elsewhere, the defendants, TERRANCE
MORGAN, RICHARD GREEN, a/k/a “Blue,” a/k/a “Bam,” KENDALL CELESTINE, ERIC

ROBINSON, MARVIN ARMSTRONG, and PATRICK SCHEXNAYDER, a/k/a “Pat,” a/k/a/
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“Red,” did knowingly and intentionally combine, conspire, confederate and agree with each other
and other persons known and unknown to the Grand Jury, to distribute and to possess with the
intent to distribute a mixture or substance containing a detectable amount of heroin, in violation

of Title 21, United States Code, Section 841(a)(1).

A. THE SCOPE OF THE CONSPIRACY:

With respect to the narcotics conspiracy charged in this Count, its overall scope involved
100 grams or more of a mixture or substance containing a detectable amount of heroin, a Schedule
I drug controlled substance, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 841(b)(1)(B).

B. QUANTITY OF CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EACH DEFENDANT:

With respect to the narcotics conspiracy involved in this Count, the defendants knew or
reasonably should have known, either through their own conduct or the reasonably foreseeable
conduct of their co-conspirators that was taken in furtherance of the narcotics conspiracy, that the
scope of the conspiracy involved the following quantities of a mixture or substance containing a

detectable amount of heroin:

Name Quantity

amount of heroin (21 U.S.C. § 841(b)(1)(B)).

TERRANCE MORGAN 100 grams or more of a mixture or substance containing a detectable

“Blue,” a/k/a “Bam,” amount of heroin (21 U.S.C. § 841(b)(1)(B)).

RICHARD GREEN, a/k/a | 100 grams or more of a mixture or substance containing a detectable

amount of heroin (21 U.S.C. § 841(b)(1)(B)).

KENDALL CELESTINE 100 grams or more of a mixture or substance containing a detectable

amount of heroin (21 U.S.C. § 841(b)(1)(B)).

ERIC ROBINSON 100 grams or more of a mixture or substance containing a detectable

of heroin (21 U.S.C. § 841(b)(1)(C)).

MARVIN ARMSTRONG | A quantity of a mixture or substance containing a detectable amount
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Name Quantity

PATRICK 100 grams or more of a mixture or substance containing a detectable
SCHEXNAYDER, a/k/a amount of heroin (21 U.S.C. § 841(b)(1)(B)).
“Pat,” a/k/a/ “Red,”

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 846.
COUNT 2
Beginning on a date unknown, but before June 2014, and continuing until on or about April
3, 2018, in the Eastern District of Louisiana and elsewhere, the defendants, TERRANCE
MORGAN, RICHARD GREEN, a/k/a “Blue,” a/k/a “Bam,” KENDALL CELESTINE, and
ERIC ROBINSON did knowingly and intentionally combine, conspire, confederate, and agree
with each other and other persons known and unknown to the Grand Jury, to possess firearms in
furtherance of a drug-trafficking crime, to wit: the drug distribution conspiracy charged in Count
1 of this Seventh Superseding Indictment, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section
924(c); all in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 924(0).
COUNT 3
On or about June 10, 2014, in the Eastern District of Louisiana, the defendant,
TERRANCE MORGAN, having previously been convicted of a crime punishable by
imprisonment for a term exceeding one year, to wit: a conviction on March 14, 2013, in Case
Number 514-572, in the 22nd Judicial District Court, State of Louisiana, for attempted
unauthorized entr? of an inhabited dwelling, a violation of La. R.S. § 14:(27)62.3; did knowingly
and intentionally possess in and affecting interstate commerce a firearm, to wit: one Glock Model
17, 9mm caliber semi-automatic handgun, serial number KZT623; in violation of Title 18, United

States Code, Sections 922(g)(1) and 924(a)(2).
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COUNT 4
On or about November 22, 2014, in the Eastern District of Louisiana, the defendant,
TERRANCE MORGAN, having previously been convicted of a crime punishable by
imprisonment for a term exceeding one year, to wit: a conviction on March 14, 2013, in Case
Number 514-572, in the 22nd Judicial District Court, State of Louisiana, for attempted
unauthorized entry of an inhabited dwelling, a violation of La. R.S. § 14:(27)62.3; did knowingly
and intentionally possess in and affecting interstate commerce a firearm, to wit: one Glock Model
26, 9mm caliber semi-automatic handgun, serial number WEP604; in violation of Title 18, United
States Code, Sections 922(g)(1) and 924(a)(2).
COUNT 5
On or about May 3, 20135, in the Eastern District of Louisiana, the defendant, TERRANCE
MORGAN, having previously been convicted of a crime punishable by imprisonment for a term
exceeding one year, to wit: a conviction on March 14, 2013, in Case Number 514-572, in the 22nd
Judicial District Court, State of Louisiana, for attempted unauthorized entry of an inhabited
dwelling, a violation of La. R.S. § 14:(27)62.3; did knowingly and intentionally possess in and
affecting interstate commerce firearms, to wit: one Glock Model 19, 9mm caliber semi-automatic
handgun, serial number YCS403, and one Glock Model 26, 9mm caliber semi-automatic handgun,
serial number NCK878; in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 922(g)(1), 924(a)(2),
and 2. |
COUNT 6
On or about January 13, 2017, in the Eastern District of Louisiana, the defendant,
TERRANCE MORGAN, having previously been convicted of a crime punishable by

imprisonment for a term exceeding one year, to wit: a conviction on March 14, 2013, in Case
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Number 514-572, in the 22nd Judicial District Court, State of Louisiana, for attempted
unauthorized entry of an inhabited dwelling, a violation of La. R.S. § 14:(27)62.3; did knowingly
and intentionally possess in and affecting interstate commerce several firearms, to wit: one Glock
Model 23, .40 caliber semi-automatic handgun, serial number ABKC311; one Smith & Wesson
model SD40VE, .40 caliber semi-automatic handgun, serial number HEP7460; and one Smith &
Wesson model SD40VE, .40 caliber semi-automatic handgun, serial number DUKO0195; in
violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 922(g)(1), 924(a)(2) and 2.
COUNT 7

On or about January 13, 2017, in the Eastern District of Louisiana, the defendants,
TERRANCE MORGAN and KENDALL CELESTINE did knowingly and intentionally
possess with the intent to distribute 3,4-Dichloro-N-[2-(dimethylamino) cyclohexyl]-N-
methylbenzamide, also known as U-47700, a Schedule I drug controlled substance; in violation of
Title 21, United States Code, Sections 841(a)(1), 841(b)(1)(C), and Title 18, United States Code,

Section 2.
COUNT 8

On or about January 13, 2017, in the Eastern District of Louisiana, the defendants,
TERRANCE MORGAN and KENDALL CELESTINE, did knowingly and intentionally
possess several firearms, to wit: one Glock Model 23, .40 caliber semi-automatic handgun, serial
number ABKC311; one Smith & Wesson model SD40VE, .40 caliber semi-automatic handgun,
serial number HEP7460; and one Smith & Wesson model SD40VE, .40 caliber semi-automatic
handgun, serial number DUK0195; in furtherance of drug-trafficking crime for which they may
be prosecuted in a court of the United States, to wit: the drug distribution conspiracy charged in

Count 1 of this Seventh Superseding Indictment, and possession with the intent to distribute 3,4-
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Dichloro-N-[2-(dimethylamino) cyclohexyl]-N-methylbenzamide, also known as U-47700, as
charged in Count 7 of this Seventh Superseding Indictment; all in violation of Title 18, United

States Code, Sections 924(c)(1)(A), 924(c)(1)(A)(i), and 2.

COUNT 9
On or about April 20, 2017, in the Eastern District of Louisiana, the defendant, RICHARD
GREEN, a/k/a “Blue,” a/k/a “Bam,” did knowingly and intentionally distribute a quantity of a
mixture or substance containing a detectable amount of heroin, a Schedule I drug controlled
substance, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 841(a)(1), 841(b)(1)(C), and Title

18, United States Code, Section 2.

COUNT 10
On or about May 17, 2017, in the Eastern District of Louisiana, the defendant, RICHARD
GREEN, a/k/a “Blue,” a/k/a “Bam,” did knowingly and intentionally distribute a quantity of a
mixture or substance containing a detectable amount of heroin, a Schedule I drug controlled

substance, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 841(a)(1) and 841(b)(1)(C).

COUNT 11
On or about June 27, 2017, in the Eastern District of Louisiana, the defendant, RICHARD
GREEN, a/k/a “Blue,” a/k/a “Bam,” did knowingly and intentionally distribute a quantity of a
mixture or substance containing a detectable amount of heroin, a Schedule I drug controlled
substance, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 841(a)(1), 841(b)(1)(C), and Title

18, United States Code, Section 2.

COUNT 12
On or about July 11, 2017, in the Eastern District of Louisiana, the defendant, RICHARD

GREEN, a/k/a “Blue,” a/k/a “Bam,” did knowingly and intentionally distribute a quantity of a

6




Case 2:15-cr-00277-EEF-KWR Document 223 Filed 08/23/18 Page 7 of 14

mixture or substance containing a detectable amount of heroin, a Schedule I drug controlled
substance, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 841(a)(1), 841(b)(1)(C), and Title

18, United States Code, Section 2.

COUNT 13
On or about July 15, 2017, in the Eastern District of Louisiana, the defendant, RICHARD
GREEN, a/k/a “Blue,” a/k/a “Bam,” having previously been convicted of a crime punishable by
imprisonment for a term exceeding one year, to wit: a conviction on February 18, 2010 in Case
Number 493-807 in Orleans Parish Criminal Court, State of Louisiana, for attempted armed
robbery, a violation of La. R.S. § 14:(27)64, and the defendant, ERIC ROBINSON, having
previously been convicted of a crime punishable by imprisonment for a term exceeding one year,
to wit: a conviction on April 1, 2014, in Case Number 519-380, in Orleans Parish Criminal Court,
State of Louisiana, for possession with intent to distribute marijuana, a violation of La. R.S.
§ 40:966(A); did knowingly and intentionally possess in and affecting interstate commerce
firearms, to wit: one Glock Model 22, .40 caliber semi-automatic handgun, serial number EYS509;
and a Glock Model 26, 9mm semi-automatic handgun, serial number KLG093; in violation of Title
18, United States Code, Sections 922(g)(1), 924(a)(2), and 2.
COUNT 14
On or about August 3, 2017, in the Eastern District of Louisiana, the defendant,
RICHARD GREEN, a/k/a “Blue,” a/k/a “Bam,” did knowingly and intentionally distribute a
quantity of a mixture or substance containing a detectable amount of heroin, a Schedule I drug
controlled substance, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 841(a)(1),

841(b)(1)(C), and Title 18, United States Code, Section 2.
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COUNT 15

On or about October 18, 2017, in the Eastern District of Louisiana, the defendant,
RICHARD GREEN, a/k/a “Blue,” a/k/a “Bam,” did knowingly and intentionally distribute a
quantity of a mixture or substance containing a detectable amount of heroin, a Schedule I drug
controlled substance, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 841(a)(1),

841(b)(1)(C), and Title 18, United States Code, Section 2.
COUNT 16

On or about January 24, 2018, in the Eastern District of Louisiana, the defendant,
KENDALL CELESTINE, did knowingly and intentionally possess a firearm, to wit: an AK-47-
style pistol, in furtherance of drug-trafficking crime for which he may be prosecuted in a court of
the United States, to wit: the drug distribution conspiracy charged in Count 1 of this Seventh
Superseding Indictment, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 924(c}(1)(A),

924(c)(1)(A)(i), and 2.
COUNT 17

On or about January 26, 2018, in the Eastern District of Louisiana, the defendant,
KENDALL CELESTINE, did knowingly and intentionally possess a firearm, to wit: an AK-47-
style pistol, in furtherance of drug-trafficking crime for which he may be prosecuted in a court of
the United States, to wit: the drug distribution conspiracy charged in Count 1 of this Seventh
Superseding Indictment, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 924(c)(1)(A),

924(c)(1)(A)(), and 2.
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COUNT 18

On or about February 23, 2018, in the Eastern District of Louisiana, the defendant,
PATRICK SCHEXNAYDER, a/k/a “Pat,” a/k/a/ “Red,” having previously been convicted of
a crime punishable by imprisonment for a term exceeding one year, to wit: a conviction on
December 7, 2016, in Case No. 530-999 “F,” in Orleans Parish Criminal District Court, State of
Louisiana, for possession of heroin, in violation of La. R.S. § 40:966(C); did knowingly and
intentionally possess in and affecting interstate commerce a firearm, to wit: a Beretta .45 caliber
semi-automatic handgun, serial number 067952MC; in violation of Title 18, United States Code,

Sections 922(g)(1) and 924(a)(2).
COUNT 19

On or about April 3, 2018, in the Eastern District of Louisiana, the defendants, RICHARD
GREEN and ERIC ROBINSON did knowingly and intentionally possess with the intent to
distribute a quantity of a mixture or substance containing a detectable amount of heroin, a Schedule

AI drug controlled substance, and 3,4-Methylenedioxymethamphetamine, also known as MDMA, a
Schedule I drug controlled substance; in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections

841(a)(1), 841(b)(1)(C), and Title 18, United States Code, Section 2.
COUNT 290

On or about April 3, 2018, in the Eastern District of Louisiana, the defendant, RICHARD
GREEN, a/k/a “Blue,” a/k/a “Bam,” having previously been convicted of a crime punishable by
imprisonment for a term exceeding one year, to wit: a conviction on February 18, 2010 in Case
Number 493-807 in Orleans Parish Criminal Court, State of Louisiana, for attempted armed
robbery, a violation of La. R.S. § 14:(27)64, and the defendant, ERIC ROBINSON, having

previously been convicted of a crime punishable by imprisonment for a term exceeding one year,
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to wit: a conviction on April 1, 2014, in Case Number 519-380, in Orleans Parish Criminal Court,
State of Louisiana, for possession with intent to distribute marijuana, a violation of La. R.S.
§ 40:966(A); did knowingly and intentionally possess in and affecting interstate commerce
firearms, to wit: one Glock Model 22, .40 caliber semi-automatic handgun, serial number
12AG01625; and one Smith & Wesson model SD40VE, .40 caliber semi-automatic handgun,
serial number DVS1876; in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 922(g)(1),
924(a)(2), and 2.
COUNT 21

On or about April 3, 2018, in the Eastern District of Louisiana, the defendants, RICHARD
GREEN, a/k/a “Blue,” a/k/a “Bam,” and ERIC ROBINSON, did knowingly and intentionally
possess several firearms, to wit: one Glock Model 22, .40 caliber semi-automatic handgun, serial
number 12AG01625; and one Smith & Wesson model SD40VE, .40 caliber semi-automatic
handgun, serial number DVS1876; in furtherance of drug-trafficking crimes for which they may
be prosecuted in a court of the United States, to wit: the drug distribution conspiracy charged in
Count 1 of this Seventh Superseding Indictment, and possession with the intent to distribute heroin
and 3,4-Methylenedioxymethamphetamine, also known as MDMA, as charged in Count 19 of this
Seventh Superseding Indictment; all in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections

924(c)(1)(A), 924(c)(1)(A)(i), and 2.
COUNT 22

On or about July 11, 2018, in the Eastern District of Louisiana, the defendant, MARVIN
ARMSTRONG, did knowingly and intentionally distribute a quantity of a mixture or substance

containing a detectable amount of heroin, a Schedule I drog controlled substance, in violation of

10
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Title 21, United States Code, Sections 841(a)(1), 841(b)(1)(C), and Title 18, United States Code,

Section 2.

NOTICE OF FIREARM FORFEITURE

1. The allegations of Counts 2 through 6, 8, 13, 16, 17, 18, 20 and 21 of this Seventh
Superseding Indictment are realleged and incorporated by reference as though set forth fully herein
for the purpose of alleging forfeiture to the United States of America pursuant to the provisions of
Title 18, United States Code, Sections 922(g) and 924(d)(1), made applicable through Title 28,
United States Code, Section 2461.

2. As a result of the offenses alleged in Counts 2 through 6, 8, 13, 16, 17, 18, 20 and
21, the defendants, TERRANCE MORGAN, RICHARD GREEN, a/k/a “Blue,” a/k/a *“‘Bam,”
and KENDALL CELESTINE, ERIC ROBINSON, and PATRICK SCHEXNAYDER, a/k/a
“Pat,” a/k/a/ “Red,” shall forfeit to the United States pursuant to Title 18, United States Code,
Sections 922(g) and 924(d)(1), made applicable through Title 28, United States Code, Section
2461, any firearm or ammunition, which was involved in or used in a knowing violation as alleged
in Counts 2 through 6, 8, 13, 16, 17, 18, 20 and 21 of this Seventh Superseding Indictment.

3. If any of the property subject to forfeiture pursuant to Paragraph 2 of this Notice of

Forfeiture, as a result of any act or omission of the defendants:

a. cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;

b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third person;

c. has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the Court;

d. has been substantially diminished in value; or

e. has been commingled with other property which cannot be subdivided

without difficulty;

11
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it 1s the intent of the Unifed States, pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, Section 853(p), to
seek forfeiture of any other property of said defendants up to the value of the above forfeitable
property.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 922(g), 924(d)(1) and 2, made
applicable through Title 28, United States Code, Section >2461.

NOTICE OF DRUG FORFEITURE

1. The allegations of Counts 1, 7, 9 through 12, 14, 15, 19, and 22 of this Seventh
Superseding Indictment are realleged and incorporated by reference as though set forth fully herein
for the purpose of alleging forfeiture to the United States of America pursuant to the provisions of
Title 21, United States Code, Section 853.

2. As a result of the offenses alleged in Counts 1, 7, 9 through 12, 14, 15, 19, and 22,
the defendants, TERRANCE MORGAN, RICHARD GREEN, a/k/a “Blue,” a/k/a “Bam,”
KENDALL CELESTINE, ERIC ROBINSON, MARVIN ARMSTRONG, and PATRICK
SCHEXNAYDER, a/k/a “Pat,” a/k/a/ “Red,” shall forfeit to the United States pursuant to Title
21, United States Code, Section 853, any and all property constituting or derived from any
proceeds the defendant obtained directly or indirectly as a result of the said violation and any and
all property used or intended to be used in any manner or part to commit and to facilitate the
commission of the violations alleged in Counts 1, 7, 9 through 12, 14, 15, 19, and 22 of this Seventh

Superseding Indictment.

3. If any of the above-described forfeitable property, as a result of any act or omission
of the defendant:
a. cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;
b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third person;

12
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c. has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the Court;

d. has been substantially diminished in value; or

e. has been commingled with other property, which cannot be subdivided
without difficulty;

it is the intent of the United States, pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, Section 853(p), to
seck forfeiture of any other property of said defendant up to the value of the above-forfeitable

property.

All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 853.

A TRUE BILL.:

DUANE A. EVANS
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

’(Wﬁmlm,\ '

MARIA M. CARBONT

Assistant United States Attorney
MATTHEW R. PAYNE
Assistant United States Attorney
Louisiana Bar Roll No. 32631

New Orleans, Louisiana
August 23, 2018
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